NECROLOGICAL REPORT

PRESENTED TO THE

ALUMNI ASSOCIATION

OF

PRINCETON THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY

AT ITS ANNUAL MEETING

MAY 7TH, 1907.

BY THE SECRETARY.

PRINCETON UNIVERSITY PRESS. 1907. nary at Princeton in the fall of 1848, remaining there until April, 1849. He was licensed by the Presbytery of Philadelphia, May 16, 1849, and ordained by the Fourth Presbytery of Philadelphia, Nov. 21, 1849, being at the same time installed pastor of the Bethlehem Church, Sydney, N. J., and was released from this, his only charge, April 17, 1900, after the unusual period of nearly fifty-one years. He contined his residence in Sydney until December, 1903, when he moved to Plainfield, N. J., where he resided until his death, which occurred July 19, 1906, at Plainfield, in the 82nd year of his age. He was buried in the graveyard of the Bethlehem Church at Sydney, N. J. He was a commissioner to the General Assembly at Philadelphia in 1861, at Chicago in 1877, and at Buffalo in 1881.

He was married June 27, 1850, near Pittstown, N. J., to Emeline Stiers, who died Nov. 29, 1903. Two sons, one being the Rev. Joseph G. Williamson, Jr., and two daughters survive him.

HENRY CLAY CAMERON, Ph.D., D.D.,

Son of John and Anna (McFall) Cameron, was born Sept. 1, 1827, in Sheperdstown, Va. He made a public confession of his faith in the Bridge Street Presbyterian Church of Georgetown, D. C., at the age of seventeen. His preparatory studies were pursued in Georgetown under James McVean, and he graduated from Princeton College in 1847. The next three years were spent in teaching at King George Court House, Va. He entered the Seminary at Princeton in 1850, graduating therefrom in 1855. During his Seminary course he was joint principal of the Edge Hill School at Princeton, 1851-52, and tutor in Princeton College, 1852-55. This extra work accounts for the prolonging of his course in the Seminary. He was licensed by the Presbytery of Philadelphia, Oct. 5, 1859, and ordained an evangelist by the same Presbytery, Feb. 1, 1863. Immediately upon his graduation from the Seminary he began

what proved to be his life work, the teaching of Greek language and literature in Princeton College. From 1855 to 1860 he was adjunct professor of Greek in the college, and associate professor from 1860 to 1861. From the latter date he was full professor of Greek and continued such until the advancing infirmities of age compelled him to give up the work of his chair and he was made professor-emeritus in 1904. In addition to teaching in the Greek department, he was instructor in French from 1859 to 1870, and the librarian of the college from 1865 to 1873. He continued his residence in Princeton until his death, Oct. 13, 1906, in the Presbyterian Hospital of New York City, after an operation, from which he was unable to rally, in the 80th year of his age. He was buried in Princeton. He received the degree of Ph.D. from Princeton in 1866 and the degree of D.D. from both Rutgers College and Wooster University in 1875. Dr. Cameron was clerk of the faculty of Princeton College from 1882 to 1903. He was also for many years a member of the committee on Necrology of Princeton Seminary. He prepared the triennial catalogues of Princeton College, which were printed in the latin language from 1866 to 1893. He was a commissioner to the General Assembly at Cleveland in 1875, at Omaha in 1877 and at St. Louis in 1900. He published articles in the Princeton Review, Hours at Home, Johnson's & Appleton's Encyclopedias, and in the daily and religious papers. He also published a history of the American Whig Society. He assisted the late Professor Guyot in his series of classical wall maps of Greece, Italy and the Roman Empire. He also published numerous articles in the Princeton Press.

Dr. Cameron was married Sept. 14, 1858, in Princeton, N. J., to Mina Louise Cecile Chollet, who with one son survives him.